

Grades 9 - 12 Course Description Book 2024 - 2025

120 High School Road Hyannis, MA 02601

TELEPHONE: (508) 862-6336

Fax: (508) 862-6339

www.jpiihyannis.org

Table of Contents

Mission Statements	3
General Information	4
Freshman Program	7
Sophomore Program	8
Junior Program	9
Senior Program	10
English Program	11
Fine Arts: Visual and Performing Arts Programs	15
World Languages Program	18
Mathematics Program	21
Health and Physical Education Program	25
Science Program	26
Social Studies Program	31
Theology Program	35
Additional Elective Courses	38
Christian Service Program	39

Mission Statements

Diocese of Fall River Catholic Schools

The Office of Catholic Schools in the Diocese of Fall River is rooted in the gospel message of Jesus Christ. This message is carried out according to the authentic teachings of the Catholic Church in union with the Diocesan Bishop who is the Chief Teacher in the Diocese.

The Office of Catholic Schools works collaboratively with parochial and diocesan school communities to provide a faith centered, holistic, values-based Catholic school experience. Our students are educated and encouraged to live out their lives as vibrant and committed members of our Church, and – as persons of faith – to be responsible and contributing citizens of their community, our nation and the world.

We pledge:

- To assist families, the primary educators, and their children entrusted to our care.
- To work collaboratively with pastors, teachers and Catholic school administrators in fulfilling the Church's teaching and evangelizing mission in the Catholic schools of the Diocese.

St. John Paul II School

St. John Paul II School is a Cape Cod Catholic school that welcomes students and families from diverse faiths and backgrounds who desire a college preparatory, Catholic education. The school's academic, artistic, athletic, and co-curricular programs cultivate strong relationships and empower students to recognize their gifts, develop their potential, and communicate Christ in word and deed. Emulating their patron St. John Paul II, students pursue truth through faith and reason, preparing them to lead lives of continuous learning, respect, and community leadership.

General Information

The curriculum is designed to prepare all students for post-secondary education. Course levels are weighted to determine grade point averages. Some courses are not offered at all levels. Please consult the course descriptions for each department in this catalog for information about course level offerings.

The placement of students in appropriate levels is a collaborative process that reflects our desire to create the best possible academic experience for each student. The goal of level placement is to have each student sufficiently challenged by a rigorous academic program while ensuring that he/she has the aptitude and skills to be successful in the classroom.

Courses are offered at the following levels of depth and pace to address the needs of students with varying aptitudes and learning styles.

Advanced Placement: Advanced students are offered the opportunity to engage in college level study in several disciplines as part of the College Board's Advanced Placement Program. In order to participate, students must demonstrate superior aptitude and achievement and a willingness to commit to considerable independent study. Admission to these courses is by school recommendation and application. All students in these courses are required to take and pay the fee for the College Board Advanced Placement Examination. Some colleges award credit to those students who receive a satisfactory score on the examination.

AP Capstone Diploma Program: The AP Capstone program is offered by the College Board and centers around two courses: AP Seminar and AP Research. Through these courses, students learn critical thinking, research, collaboration, time management, and presentation skills. Students who earn scores of 3 or higher in AP Seminar and AP Research and on four additional AP Exams of their choosing receive the AP Capstone Diploma, which is awarded by the College Board. Students who earn scores of 3 or higher in AP Seminar and AP Research but not on four additional AP Exams receive the AP Seminar and Research Certificate.

Pre-AP: Pre-AP courses are part of the College Board's Advanced Placement program. They do not offer college credit like AP courses, but provide the content and skills that will help students succeed at the AP level. The goal of Pre-AP courses is to help students learn how to answer higher-order questions and problems and develop critical thinking skills. The pace of instruction and depth of content is roughly equivalent to the Honors level. School recommendation is required for enrollment in Pre-AP courses.

Honors: Honors level courses are designed to challenge students who have demonstrated a high level of academic aptitude and achievement. The pace of instruction is rapid and topics are explored in greater depth than in the College Preparatory level. School recommendation is required for enrollment in honors courses. Students are expected to complete independent research, group work, and long term assignments. Assessments emphasize the development of critical thinking skills, originality and creativity, and the ability to make connections within the subject area as well as with other academic disciplines.

College Preparatory: This level provides students who have demonstrated above average/average aptitude and achievement with a thorough understanding of the fundamentals of the subject area and the application of concepts. Emphasis is placed on fine tuning skills as well as developing the capacity for more critical thinking. Students are expected to complete daily homework assignments as well as some long term assignments and projects. Frequent and varied assessments characterize this level.

Dual Enrollment: St. John Paul II School, High School Division offers dual enrollment (DE) courses through Stonehill College. As college-level courses, they require superior aptitude and achievement. Offerings will vary from year to year. Courses will be taught by a Stonehill professor and will be conducted in a hybrid format: class meetings online and occasionally in-person, outside of regular JP2 school hours. Students must pay a fee to enroll in Stonehill courses. Students may enroll for up to three DE credits in each academic semester, up to a maximum of six credits for the entire program. DE courses are intended for seniors and juniors. Students will receive high school credit for a DE course and the course will be recorded on an official college transcript.

Graduation Requirements: To receive a diploma from St. John Paul II School, High School Division, students must earn a total of 26 credits in the following areas:

English 4 Credits
Theology 4 Credits
Science 3 Credits

(3 Credits must be a laboratory science)

Mathematics 3 Credits Social Studies 3 Credits

(1 Credit in World History and 2 in U.S. History)

World Languages 3 Credits

(must be earned in the same language)

Fine Arts 1 Credit
Health .5 Credit
Elective Courses 4.5 Credits

Christian Service Program Additionally, successful completion of the school's Christian

Service Program is required for matriculation and graduation.

Grade Chart/ Quality Points: Letter grades are equivalent to the quality points listed below. Advanced Placement course grades receive a 1.15 multiplier; Honors course grades receive a 1.1 multiplier.

<u>Grade</u>	AP Courses	Honors Courses	<u>CP Courses</u>
A+	4.98	4.76	4.33
А	4.6	4.4	4
A-	4.22	4.04	3.67
B+	3.83	3.66	3.33
В	3.45	3.3	3
B-	3.07	2.94	2.67
C+	2.68	2.56	2.33
С	2.3	2.2	2
C-	1.92	1.84	1.67
D+	1.53	1.46	1.33
D	1.15	1.1	1
D-	0.77	0.74	0.67
F	0	0	0

Freshman Program

Students are required to enroll in a minimum of 6.5 credits during their freshman year. *Students may schedule no more than one study hall per year.*

English	Pre-AP English 1 (9)	CP English 9	
Theology	Scripture: The Revelation of Jesus Christ	Christology: Who is Jesus Christ?	
Sciences	Pre-AP Biology	CP Biology	
Mathematics	Honors Geometry	Honors/CP Algebra I	
Social Studies	Pre-AP World History and Geography	CP World History	
World Languages	CP Spanish I	CP Spanish II	ESL
Arts	Foundations of Visual Arts	Strings Ensemble (X-Block)	Concert Choir (X-Block)
	Chamber Choir	Technical Theater	Theater Workshop
Health & Physical Education	Health Science	Team Sports	
Other	Quiet Study		

Sophomore Program

Students are required to enroll in a minimum of 6.5 credits during their sophomore year. *Students may schedule no more than one study hall per year.*

English	CP English 10	Honors English 10	AP Seminar (English 10)
Theology	Church History	The Church: Jesus Christ's Mission Continues	
Sciences	Chemistry (Honors, CP)	CP Marine Science	
Mathematics	Geometry (Honors, CP)	Honors Algebra II/ Trigonometry	CP Algebra II
Social Studies	Honors United States History I	CP United States History I	
World Languages	CP Spanish II	Spanish III (Honors, CP)	ESL
Arts	Foundations of Visual Arts	3-D Design	Chamber Choir
	Painting & Design I, II	Graphic Design I, II	Technical Theater
	Illustration and Cartooning	Concert Choir (X-Block)	Strings Ensemble (X-Block)
	Advanced Drawing	Yearbook	Theater Workshop
Health & Physical Education	Team Sports		
Other	Quiet Study	Video Production	

Junior Program

Students are required to enroll in a minimum of 6.5 credits during their junior year. Students may schedule no more than one study hall per year.

English	AP Language & Composition	Honors English 11	CP English 11
Theology	Sacraments: Privileged Encounters with Jesus Christ	Christian Morality: Life in Jesus Christ	
Sciences	Environmental Science (AP, Honors, CP)	AP Biology	Anatomy & Physiology (Honors)
	Chemistry (AP, Honors, CP)	AP Physics	CP Marine Science
STEM	Principles of Engineering (Honors, CP)		
Mathematics	Precalculus (Honors, CP)	Honors Algebra II/ Trigonometry	CP Algebra II
	AP Statistics (Online)		
Social Studies	United States History II (AP, Honors, CP)	Psychology (AP, Honors, CP)	Economics (Honors, CP)
World Languages	Spanish III (Honors, CP)	Spanish IV (Honors, CP)	ESL
Arts	Foundations of Visual Arts	3-D Design	Chamber Choir
	Painting & Design I, II	Graphic Design I, II	Technical Theater
	Illustration and Cartooning	Concert Choir (X-Block)	Strings Ensemble (X-Block)
	Advanced Drawing	Yearbook	Theater Workshop
Health & Physical Education	Team Sports		
Other	AP Computer Science Principles	Quiet Study	Video Production
	Science Fair Practicum		

Senior Program

Students are required to enroll in a minimum of 6.5 credits during their senior year. Students may schedule no more than one study hall per year.

English	English 12: Literature and the Arts (Honors, CP)	English 12: Composition (Honors, CP)	
Theology	Social Justice: Living as Disciples of Jesus Christ	Comparative Religions	The Letters of Saint Paul
Sciences	Environmental Science (AP, Honors, CP)	Anatomy & Physiology (Honors)	AP Biology
	Chemistry (AP, Honors, CP)	AP Physics	CP Marine Science
STEM	Principles of Engineering (Honors, CP)		
Mathematics	Calculus (AP, Honors, CP)	Precalculus (Honors, CP)	
	AP Statistics (Online)	CP Introduction to Statistics	CP Financial Literacy
Social Studies	Psychology (AP, Honors, CP)	Economics (Honors, CP)	AP US Government and Politics
World Languages	Spanish IV (Honors, CP)	Honors Spanish V	ESL
Arts	Foundations of Visual Arts	3-D Design	Concert Choir (X-Block)
	Painting & Design I, II	Graphic Design I, II	Chamber Choir
	Illustration and Cartooning	Strings Ensemble (X-Block)	Technical Theater
	Independent Portfolio Design	Yearbook	Theater Workshop
Health & Physical Education	Team Sports		
Other	AP Computer Science Principles	Video Production	Quiet Study
	AP Research	Honors Leadership Studies & Practicum	Science Fair Practicum

English Program

CP ENGLISH 9: Introduction to Literature & Expository Writing

Year 1 Credit Grade 9

Introduction to Literature serves as an introduction to the major content areas of high school English. The focus on literature is designed to expose students to a variety of literary forms, including poems and short stories. The full-length works explore various genres, including drama, novel, non-fiction, and autobiography. In writing, students practice the narrative, descriptive, expository, and persuasive modes to demonstrate original critical thinking skills reflecting their understanding of the works analyzed. Students will learn vocabulary and context skills, and experience a review of the fundamentals of grammar and syntax. Other skills that this class will allow students to work on include close-reading, MLA formatting, quiz and test preparation, proofreading and self-assessment, authenticating research, and technology skills specifically word processing, and slide and document formatting.

PRE-AP ENGLISH 1 (9)

Year 1 Credit Grade 9

Reg: School recommendation.

"Texts take center stage in the Pre-AP English classroom, inspiring and preparing all students for close, critical reading and analytical writing. This course trains the reader to observe the small details within a text to arrive at a deeper understanding of the whole. It also trains the reader to appreciate authors' sometimes subtle choices, developing an awareness of how words produce effects and how the conventions of the English language are used for both precision and style. As writers, students will focus first on crafting complex sentences, building this foundational skill; they will then move on to producing well-organized paragraphs and, as the year progresses, more sophisticated, longer-form analyses." (*Pre-AP English 1 Course Guide*, College Board, Fall 2018)

CP ENGLISH 10: World Literature

Year 1 Credit Grade 10

World Literature exposes students to literature from around the world, expanding their worldview while improving writing, reading, and analytical skills. Students will read works from a multitude of time periods and cultures, responding to and synthesizing content, theme, and conventions. With this work students will connect cultures all around the world, taking note of similarities and evaluating differences. They will also describe and locate common themes and relate those themes to geographic, religious and cultural influences. Through reading literature that spans the globe, students will improve upon reading and writing skills, making connections to the world around them. Students will compile comparative and analytical essays, multimedia presentations, and projects that foster creativity, demonstrating how literature can break down boundaries and yield true understanding of moral and cultural truths.

HONORS ENGLISH 10: World Literature

Year 1 Credit Grade 10

Req: School recommendation.

World Literature exposes students to literature from around the world, expanding their worldview while improving writing, reading, and analytical skills. Students will read works from a multitude of time periods and cultures, responding to and synthesizing content, theme, and conventions. Students at the Honors level are expected to deeply engage with the readings while reading at a faster pace, participate in in-depth discussions of the literature, and hone their writing skills throughout the year. With this work students will connect cultures all around the world, taking note of similarities and evaluating differences. They will also describe and locate common themes and relate those themes to geographic, religious and cultural influences. Through reading literature that spans the globe, students will improve upon reading and writing skills, making connections to the world around them. Students will compile comparative and analytical essays, multimedia presentations, and projects that foster creativity, demonstrating how literature can break down boundaries and yield true understanding of moral and cultural truths.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT SEMINAR: ENGLISH 10

Year 1 Credit Grade 10

Req: School recommendation, application process.

AP Seminar is a foundational course that engages students in cross-curricular conversations that explore the complexities of academic and real-world topics and issues by analyzing divergent perspectives. Offered as a World Literature course, AP Seminar uses an inquiry framework by which students will read works from a multitude of time periods and cultures to discover how literature can break down boundaries and yield true understanding of moral and cultural truths. At the AP level, students will additionally practice reading and analyzing articles, research studies, and foundational literary and philosophical texts that compliment the thematic concerns of the primary texts of study; listening to and viewing speeches, broadcasts, and personal accounts; and experiencing artistic works and performances. Students will learn to synthesize information from multiple sources, develop their own perspectives in research-based written essays, and design and deliver oral and visual presentations, both individually and as part of a team. Ultimately, the course aims to equip students to analyze and evaluate information with accuracy and precision in order to craft and communicate evidence-based arguments.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP exam.

CP ENGLISH 11: American Literature

Year 1 Credit Grade 11

The American Literature course explores a variety of American texts through which students learn close-reading and analysis skills. The purpose of the course is to enable students to write effectively and confidently in their college preparatory level courses across the curriculum. The students read both nonfiction and fiction works by American authors in order to achieve a higher level of learning and analysis. Students are instructed in the different forms and functions of rhetoric in order to analyze written works, as well as to write on various topics through argumentation, narration, exposition, and analytical writings. Students will continue to develop vocabulary and test taking skills while working toward mastery of language skills. An emphasis on standardized test-taking skills, the revision process, the conventions of language, and online research will all be integral parts of this course.

HONORS ENGLISH 11: American Literature

Year 1 Credit Grade 11

Req: School recommendation.

The Honors American Literature course explores a variety of American texts through which students strengthen critical reading, thinking and writing skills. Students read and carefully analyze a variety of nonfiction and fiction, deepening their awareness of rhetoric and how language works. Through close reading exercises and frequent writing, students gain greater access to language and develop a greater awareness of purpose and strategy, enabling students to write effectively and confidently across the curriculum. Students examine and work with essays, letters, speeches, images and imaginative literature; and are instructed to write on various topics through argumentation, narration, exposition, and analytical writings. Students will continue to develop vocabulary, writing, and test taking skills while working toward mastery of language skills. An emphasis on standardized test-taking skills, the revision process, the conventions of language and online research will all be integral parts of this course.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT ENGLISH 11: Language and Composition

Year 1 Credit Grade 11

Req: Successful completion of Honors English 10 or its equivalent, school recommendation, application process.

An AP English Language and Composition course cultivates the reading and writing skills that students need for college success and for intellectually responsible civic engagement. The course quides students in becoming curious, critical, and responsive readers of diverse texts, and becoming flexible, reflective writers of texts addressed to diverse audiences for diverse purposes. The reading and writing students do in the course should deepen and expand their understanding of how written language functions rhetorically: to communicate writers' intentions and elicit readers' responses in particular situations. The course cultivates the rhetorical understanding and use of written language by directing students' attention to writer/reader interactions in their reading and writing of various formal and informal genres. Reading and writing activities in the course also deepen students' knowledge and control of formal conventions of written language (e.g., vocabulary, diction, syntax, spelling, punctuation, paragraphing, genre). The course helps students understand that formal conventions of the English language in its many written and spoken dialects are historically, culturally, and socially produced; that the use of these conventions may intentionally or unintentionally contribute to the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of a piece of writing in a particular rhetorical context; and that a particular set of language conventions defines Standard Written English, the preferred dialect for academic discourse.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP exam.

CP ENGLISH 12: Literature and the Arts

Semester ½ Credit Grade 12

English 12: Literature and the Arts is designed to develop students' critical analysis skills as applied to literature and the fine and performing arts to prepare students for college-level arts and humanities work. Students will develop these skills through the examination of literature, film, music, and fine art in order to understand their complexities, richness of meaning, historical context, and artistry. Examining works in multiple media based on a single source, students will examine how differences in media can change the presentation and meanings of a story and its elements. The focus of writing is analysis of the works studied, and develops the capacity for clear exposition, argumentation, and persuasion.

HONORS ENGLISH 12: Literature and the Arts

Semester ½ Credit Grade 12

English 12: Honors Literature and the Arts is designed to develop students' critical analysis skills as applied to literature and the fine and performing arts to prepare students for college-level arts and humanities work. Students will develop these skills through the examination of literature, film, music, and fine art in order to understand their complexities, richness of meaning, historical context, and artistry. Examining works in multiple media based on a single source, students will examine how differences in media can change the presentation and meanings of a story and its elements. The focus of writing is analysis of the works studied, and develops the capacity for clear exposition, argumentation, and persuasion. The Honors level expects a higher level of critical thinking and attention to detail than the College Preparatory course.

CP ENGLISH 12: Composition

Semester ½ Credit Grade 12

English 12: Composition focuses on the dual skills of critical analysis and composition in order to prepare students for college-level writing. Students are challenged to think more comprehensively and abstractly about the works and ideas of modern society. Students will develop critical reading skills primarily through the study of nonfiction, essays, film and visual media covering topics in a variety of academic disciplines. With an emphasis on analysis and synthesis, students learn to identify the rhetorical devices and strategies used by authors to convey their message, and then learn to use those strategies themselves. Students develop their writing skills and understanding of conventions across the curriculum. Writing is centered around the art of clear expository, argumentative, and persuasive papers.

HONORS ENGLISH 12: Composition

Semester ½ Credit Grade 12

English 12: Honors Composition focuses on the dual skills of critical analysis and composition in order to prepare students for college-level writing. Students are challenged to think more comprehensively and abstractly about the works and ideas of modern society. Students will develop critical reading skills primarily through the study of nonfiction, essays, film and visual media covering topics in a variety of academic disciplines. With an emphasis on analysis and synthesis, students learn to identify the rhetorical devices and strategies used by authors to convey their message, and then learn to use those strategies themselves. Students develop their writing skills and understanding of conventions across the curriculum. Writing is centered around the art of clear expository, argumentative, and persuasive papers. The Honors level expects a higher level of critical thinking and attention to detail than the College Preparatory course.

Fine Arts: Visual and Performing Arts Programs

One (1) credit in Fine Arts is required for graduation.

FOUNDATIONS OF VISUAL ARTS

Semester ½ Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

This course is designed for students of all levels. It is a survey course intended to expose students to several different mediums including charcoal, pastel, pen and ink, and pencil drawing. Art processes will be taught alongside lessons in art history. Students will be introduced to movements throughout the art world in addition to the basic techniques for handling chosen materials. Emphasis is placed on both the finished art "object" as well as the process of creating a piece of work. Students will participate in formal critiques of their peers' work, and in doing so become familiar with art vocabulary. After completing this course, students are prepared for more advanced work in a specific focus area, including painting or graphic design.

PAINTING & DESIGN I

Semester ½ Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Foundations of Visual Arts.

This course is designed for students who wish to further their knowledge of fine art. Basic color mixing is taught, including the color wheel and color harmonies. Experiences in selected media including acrylic paint, pastel, watercolor, charcoal, and printmaking are applied to abstract designs, still-life, landscapes, and the figure.

PAINTING & DESIGN II

Semester ½ Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Reg: Successful completion of Foundations of Visual Arts, Painting & Design I.

Students will build upon the skills learned in Painting and Design I. Advanced subject matter, drawing, and painting media will facilitate the development of the individual student-artist. Drawing and painting skills will be reinforced and expanded.

GRAPHIC DESIGN I

Semester ½ Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

This course will focus on the basic principles of graphic design and the tools/software used to create those designs. Students will learn to use many of the programs included in Adobe Creative Suite, with a focus on Photoshop for photo editing and digital painting, Illustrator for digital drawing and creating icons/logos, and InDesign for layout and typography.

GRAPHIC DESIGN II

Semester ½ Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Reg: Successful completion of Graphic Design I.

This course will build upon the skills developed in Graphic Design I with a deeper dive into Adobe Software and a more individualized approach to design. The course will have a strong focus on developing each student's unique visual voice.

3-D DESIGN

Semester ½ Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Foundations of Visual Arts.

This course is designed to develop three-dimensional skills in a variety of media. Students will complete sculptural works in paper, wire, clay, relief sculpture, fabric, and papier mache. Projects will have figurative, narrative, and abstract emphases. Students should take Foundations of Visual Arts before taking this class.

YEARBOOK

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Teacher recommendation.

Yearbook is a multidisciplinary course that will cover the basics of photography, graphic design, writing and illustration. Using Adobe software, as well as other online tools, students will have a chance to participate in preserving and crafting the memories of their high school experience.

ILLUSTRATION AND CARTOONING

Semester ½ Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Reg: Successful completion of Foundations of Visual Arts.

The course will teach students how to use art as a storytelling tool. It will cover how to use character, composition and color to convey an idea. Students will have the opportunity to explore several different forms of illustration using a wide variety of media, such as pencil, colored pencil, acrylic paint, and watercolors.

INDEPENDENT PORTFOLIO DEVELOPMENT

Semester ½ Credit Grades 11, 12

Reg: Teacher recommendation.

This independent study course will prepare the advanced visual art student for portfolio presentation at post-secondary art schools. This option is intended only for the serious art student desiring post-secondary art instruction.

STRINGS ENSEMBLE

Year ½ Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

Strings Ensemble provides an opportunity for violin, viola, and cello students to perform chamber music together, and to receive individual instruction. Students learn to play in a variety of styles including classical, sacred, fiddling and folk music, and also study music theory and music history. Enrollment in private violin, viola, cello, or bass lessons is required.

CONCERT CHOIR

Year ½ Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

This large Concert Choir is open to all students. It affords students the opportunity to sing both large choral classics, as well as more accessible, contemporary selections. Exposure to a wide variety of sacred and secular choral works is a priority. The Concert Choir tours annually, both locally and to places such as New York and Italy. Additionally, the Concert Choir sings monthly at Mass with our school. No previous singing experience is necessary; all aspects of singing and performing that are required will be taught to students as a part of this class.

CHAMBER CHOIR

Reg: Audition Process, Enrollment in Concert Choir.

Year No Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

This is the most advanced voice and choir class at St. John Paul II School. Admittance into this ensemble is by audition only. This Honors Choir will perform for numerous events throughout the year. Enrollment in the Concert Choir is required, and private voice lessons are highly recommended.

TECHNICAL THEATER

Semester ½ Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

This class will focus on the fundamentals of technical theater, including set design and construction, lighting design and implementation, sound design and execution, as well as how to run a show, including the various technical theater roles and their appropriate and functional interaction. The correct and responsible use of state-of-the-art technical theater equipment, such as computer lighting boards, and digital sound boards is included in this course. Students enrolled in this class will be expected to perform as a part of the Tech Crew during all productions while in the class.

THEATER WORKSHOP

Semester ½ Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

This course is designed to progressively enhance the performance ability of the theater student in the areas of acting, singing, and movement, in both ensemble and solo environments. Emphasis will be placed upon the long-term development of a student portfolio for college and professional auditions. For a serious performer, this course may be taken for as many semesters as desired or needed. Additionally, because all students will need to "perform" on the stage of life in order to become competent professionals in any field, this course welcomes any student who would like to present themselves in public with poise. This course satisfies the school Fine Arts requirement.

VIDEO PRODUCTION

Semester ½ Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

This course introduces students to the principles and elements of video production. Topics will include using the camera, lighting, direction, editing and sound. Students will gain experience creating video productions for the school community, as they produce JPII TV on a weekly basis. Students in this class will participate in all aspects of production, on a rotating basis.

World Languages Program

A three-year/three (3) credit sequence in Spanish is required.

ENGLISH AS A SECOND LANGUAGE

Year 1 Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

This course supports students so that they may advance their English language skills (reading, writing, speaking, and listening) in order to succeed academically in their other classes at St. John Paul II School, High School Division, prepare for the TOEFL and other college entrance requirements, and navigate daily life in the United States.

CP SPANISH I

Year 1 Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

This course introduces students to the four basic skills of listening, speaking, reading and writing with an emphasis on authentic communication. Classes are conducted mostly in Spanish and students respond and converse in Spanish using basic vocabulary and grammatical structures. Students are provided opportunities to communicate orally in Spanish with their peers. Students are also introduced to various cultures of the Spanish speaking world through readings, realia, art, popular sayings, photographs, games, music and literature. Listening will be practiced through contemporary music, audio, video, and other content that supplements the course material.

CP SPANISH II

Year 1 Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Spanish I.

This course expands upon the four basic skills of listening, speaking, reading and writing. Classroom instruction is in Spanish and students are expected to respond and converse in Spanish using expanded vocabulary and grammatical structures. Students will do more extensive readings and creative writing. Students will demonstrate their understanding of the cultures of various Spanish speaking places by making presentations on Hispanic culture, history and geography. Listening will be practiced through contemporary and pop music, audio, video, and other content that supplements the course material.

CP SPANISH III

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Spanish II.

This course begins with a review of grammatical structures presented in Spanish I and II and introduces new vocabulary within the context of conversation, reading, and writing. Students are introduced to higher-level grammatical structures, including the subjunctive mood, while mastering previously learned tenses and grammar. Students will expand their understanding of Latino and Hispanic cultures through art, videos, and short stories. Students are expected to write short compositions and give oral presentations on topics within their experience using vocabulary and structures being studied. Students are expected to progress to use only Spanish in all classroom activities.

HONORS SPANISH III

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Spanish II, school recommendation.

This course begins with a review of grammatical structures presented in Spanish I and II and introduces new vocabulary within the context of conversation, reading, and writing. Students are introduced to higher-level grammatical structures, including the subjunctive mood, while mastering previously learned tenses and grammar. Students will expand their understanding of Latino and Hispanic cultures through art, videos, and short stories. Students are expected to write short compositions and give oral presentations on topics within their experience using vocabulary and structures being studied. Students are expected to progress to use only Spanish in all classroom activities. Students at the Honors level are expected to show a higher level of proficiency through assigned projects and presentations.

CP SPANISH IV

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Spanish III, school recommendation.

This course reinforces the basic grammar and vocabulary learned in Spanish I-III and gives the student an understanding and working ability of more complex grammatical constructions. At the same time, it builds upon vocabulary and structures that are presented and their relation to real-life situations of student experiences in education, the workplace, and study abroad. Students work to improve proficiency of the Spanish language and expand their understanding of Latino/Hispanic cultures through authentic reading selections, which cover classic literature, modern journal-writing, and essays. We will also view a number of films in Spanish to improve their understanding of the language and to gain further insight into the history and cultures of Spanish-speaking countries. Students are expected to use only Spanish in all classroom activities.

HONORS SPANISH IV

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Spanish III, school recommendation.

This course reinforces the basic grammar and vocabulary learned in Spanish I-III and gives the student an understanding and working ability of more complex grammatical constructions. At the same time, it builds upon vocabulary and structures that are presented and their relation to real-life situations of student experiences in education, the workplace, and study abroad. Students work to improve proficiency of the Spanish language and expand their understanding of Latino/Hispanic cultures through authentic reading selections, which cover classic literature, modern journal-writing, and essays. We will also view a number of films in Spanish to improve their understanding of the language and to gain further insight into the history and cultures of Spanish-speaking countries. Students are expected to use only Spanish in all classroom activities. Students at the Honors level are expected to show a higher level of proficiency through projects and presentations.

HONORS SPANISH V

Year 1 Credit Grade 12

Req: Successful completion of Spanish IV, school recommendation.

This course reinforces the extensive grammar learned in previous levels and gives the student a working ability of more complex grammatical constructions. At the same time, it builds upon vocabulary and their relation to real-life situations of student experiences in education and the workplace. Students will demonstrate fluency in the target language and will be exposed to a wide range of literary selections from Spain, Latin America, and the United States. Students will view a number of films in Spanish to improve their understanding of the language and to gain further insights into the history and cultures of Spanish-speaking countries. Students are required to use Spanish in all classroom activities (written and spoken). Students at the Honors level are expected to show a higher level of proficiency through projects and presentations.

Mathematics Program

Three (3) credits in Mathematics are required for graduation. However, as a college-preparatory school, four years of mathematics are strongly recommended.

CP ALGEBRA I

Year 1 Credit Grade 9

This course is the standard course for the majority of students. Emphasis is placed on acquiring a solid knowledge of the fundamentals of algebra. Topics include: uses of algebra, operations with real numbers, solving equations, equations and inequalities, graphing relations and functions, systems of equations, inequalities, exponents and polynomials, rational expressions, word problems with rational expressions, radicals, and quadratic functions and equations.

HONORS ALGEBRA I

Year 1 Credit Grade 9

Req: Requires school recommendation.

This course is intended for students with strong mathematics ability who are looking for a solid foundation in Algebra I so that they will be prepared for future honors and AP level courses. Topics include: operations with real numbers, order of operations, solving equations and inequalities, absolute values, exponents and polynomials, factoring, systems of equations, coordinate geometry, rational expressions, word problems, radicals, and quadratic functions and equations.

CP GEOMETRY

Year 1 Credit Grades 9, 10

Req: Successful completion of Algebra I. Grade 9 requires school recommendation.

This course is the standard grade 10 course for the majority of students. Emphasis is on exploring geometric relationships using algebraic techniques. The use of deductive reasoning and proof is introduced. Major topics include coordinate geometry, congruence, inequalities, perpendicularity, parallel lines, area of polygons, right triangles, similarity, circles, area of circles and sectors, surface area, and volume. Students will work with computer technology to explore geometric concepts. Incoming freshmen who have successfully completed a solid Algebra I course to include quadratic equations may take this course.

HONORS GEOMETRY

Year 1 Credit Grades 9, 10

Req: Successful completion of Algebra I. Grade 9 requires school recommendation.

This course is intended for the student with superior mathematical ability who has successfully completed a solid Algebra I course in 8th grade. Emphasis is on exploring geometric relationships using algebraic techniques. The course integrates plane and solid geometry. The use of deductive reasoning and proof is stressed especially in the first semester. Major topics include coordinate geometry, congruence, inequalities, perpendicularity, parallelism, area of polygons, right triangles, similarity, circles, area of circles and sectors, surface area and volume. Students will work with computer technology to explore geometric concepts. Students are expected to maintain a 'C+' average or better to remain in the class during the school year.

CP ALGEBRA II

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11

Reg: Successful completion of Geometry.

This course is the continuation of the Algebra I course. After a brief review of Algebra I, students will cover topics such as: graphing, factoring, and solving quadratic and polynomial functions, transformations, complex numbers, exponents and radicals, inverse functions, rational functions and inequalities, and applications of various functions.

HONORS ALGEBRA II & TRIGONOMETRY

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11

Req: Successful completion of Geometry, school recommendation.

This course is the continuation of the honors sequence in math for the students that took Honors Geometry. Students will be required to work at a fast pace and in depth. Major topics include: solutions of polynomial equations and inequalities, exponents and radicals, factoring, quadratic and inverse functions, function applications, analytic geometry, transformations of graphs, polynomial functions, rational expressions, rational functions and inequalities, and complex numbers. Topics in trigonometry include trigonometric functions, inverse functions, radian measure, identities and trigonometric equations. A graphing calculator is required.

CP PRECALCULUS

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of CP Algebra II or Honors Algebra II/Trigonometry and Geometry. This course is a study of functions and topics in precalculus. Topics to be covered are polynomial functions, conic sections, exponential and logarithmic functions, analytic geometry and trigonometry. Trigonometry topics include an in depth study of the unit circle, radian measures, trigonometric functions and identities, solving triangles, and real world applications. Graphing calculators are required.

HONORS PRECALCULUS

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Honors Algebra II/ Trigonometry and Honors Geometry.

This course is the continuation of the honors sequence in math with the intent of preparing students for a future higher level math course. It is a study of functions and topics in precalculus. Topics to be covered are polynomial functions, conic sections, exponential and logarithmic functions, analytic geometry and trigonometry. Trigonometry topics include an in depth study of the unit circle, radian measures, trigonometric functions and identities, solving triangles, and real world applications. Graphing calculators are required.

CP INTRODUCTION TO STATISTICS

Semester ½ Credit Grades 12

Reg: Successful completion of CP Algebra II or Honors Algebra II/Trigonometry.

This course offers students an introduction to the field of statistics and how its applications can be used to better understand topics in areas such as science, business, economics, education, and the social sciences. Students are expected to do statistical assignments that involve gathering data on a subject of interest and performing a statistical analysis. The course investigates normal distributions, standard deviation, sampling techniques, analyses of data, and basic probability.

CP FINANCIAL LITERACY

Semester ½ Credit Grades 12

Req: Successful completion of CP Algebra II or Honors Algebra II/Trigonometry.

The course presents essential knowledge and skills to make informed decisions about real world financial issues. Students will learn how choices influence occupational options and future earning potential. Students will also learn to apply decision-making skills to evaluate career choices and set personal goals. The course content is designed to help the learner make wise spending, saving, and credit decisions and to make effective use of income to achieve personal financial success.

CP CALCULUS

Year 1 Credit Grade 12

Req: Successful completion of Precalculus.

This course is similar to Honors Calculus but covers the material in less depth. The differentiation and integration of algebraic and transcendental functions with applications are the major topics. A graphing calculator is mandatory.

HONORS CALCULUS

Year 1 Credit Grade 12

Req: Successful completion of Precalculus, school recommendation.

This course follows the guidelines set by the College Board and is equivalent to almost one semester of college level calculus. The differentiation and integration of algebraic and transcendental functions with applications are the major topics. This course is less rigorous than AP Calculus. A graphing calculator is mandatory.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT CALCULUS AB

Year 1 Credit Grade 12

Req: Successful completion of Precalculus, school recommendation, application process.

This course is designed to be equivalent to an introductory college course in calculus. Topics begin with a quick review of inequalities, absolute value and algebraic functions. New topics include: limits, differentiation, mean value theorem, extreme value problems, related rates problems, integration, area under and between curves, volumes of solids of revolution by disc and shell methods, and elementary differential equations. This course requires more out-of-class work than non-AP courses. Graphing calculators are required, preferably TI 84 Plus.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP Exam.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT STATISTICS (Online)

Year 1 Credit Grade 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Honors Algebra II, school recommendation, application process.

The purpose of the AP course in statistics is to introduce students to the major concepts and tools for collecting, analyzing and drawing conclusions from data. Students are exposed to four broad conceptual themes: 1. Exploring Data: Describing patterns and departures from patterns. 2. Sampling and Experimentation: Planning and conducting a study. 3. Anticipating Patterns: Exploring random phenomena using probability and simulation. 4. Statistical Inference: Estimating population parameters and testing hypotheses. Because this is an AP course it will require more out-of-class work than non-AP courses. Graphing calculators are required, preferably TI 84 Plus.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination.

Health and Physical Education Program

One-half credit of Health is required for graduation.

HEALTH SCIENCE

Semester ½ Credit Grade 9

Health education is a social science that draws from the biological, environmental, psychological, physical and medical sciences to promote health and prevent disease. Students will use a skills-based approach to empower them to maintain and enhance their health and wellness. They will develop the skills, attitudes, and knowledge necessary for being health literate.

This program correlates with the National Health Standards, the Diocesan Health Curriculum, is aligned with the Mass Health Frameworks, and addresses the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's six priority health-risk behaviors of youth.

The course content includes Nutrition, Mental and Emotional Health, Healthy Relationships, Alcohol, Tobacco and other Drugs, Violence Prevention, Injury Prevention and Safety, Disease Control and Prevention, Human Reproduction, HIV/AIDS and other STDs.

N.B.: Health Science is required for graduation.

TEAM SPORTS

Semester ½ Credit Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

Participation in a St. John Paul II High School team sport earns physical education credit. The following requirements exist for this credit to be issued:

- Students must complete the entire season as a bona fide team member (team managers will not receive credit).
- Athletes injured during the season may receive credit at the discretion of the Athletic Director.
- All athletes must have proof of recently (13 months) completed physical exams and completed MIAA physical exam forms on file with the School Office.
- The Athletic Director will issue pass/fail grades at the end of the sports season.
- A maximum of ½-credit may be earned in any one academic year, regardless of the number of team sports.
- Team sports shall be defined by the school. Cheerleading meets the Team Sports definition.

Science Program

Three (3) credits are required for graduation. However, as a college-preparatory school, four years of science are strongly recommended. *Biology and Chemistry are required courses*.

CP BIOLOGY

Year 1 Credit Grade 9

Biology is a required, laboratory-based course for all freshmen. It is designed to use scientific inquiry as a problem-solving approach to understand how living systems function and interact with their physical environment. Topics include biochemistry; cells; genetics; evolution; diversity and adaptations of organisms; and ecology.

PRE-AP BIOLOGY

Year 1 Credit Grade 9

Req: School recommendation.

"Pre-AP Biology sparks student motivation and critical thinking about our living world as they engage in real-world data analysis and problem solving. Through the Areas of Focus, students engage deeply with science practices to construct and refine their biological knowledge and strengthen their cross-disciplinary reading, writing, and mathematical skills as they analyze data. Pre-AP Biology fosters student growth as they make meaningful connections among the structures, processes, and interactions that exist within and across living systems—from cells to ecological communities. Pre-AP Biology motivates students to be active participants in analyzing real-world phenomena and to collaborate productively with their peers in dialogue, investigations, and problem solving." (*Pre-AP Biology Course Guide*, College Board, Fall 2018)

ADVANCED PLACEMENT BIOLOGY

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Pre-AP or Honors Biology and Honors Chemistry, school recommendation, application process; minimum grade of B+ in Chemistry and Biology.

AP Biology is designed to be the equivalent of a two-semester college introductory biology course usually taken by biology majors during their first year. The two main goals of AP Biology are to help students develop a conceptual framework for modern biology and an appreciation of science as a process. Essential to the conceptual understanding of AP Biology topics, students will grasp science as a process rather than as an accumulation of facts, have personal experience in scientific inquiry, recognize the unifying themes that integrate major topics of biology, and apply biological knowledge and critical thinking to environmental and social concerns. Extra class time is required weekly throughout the year.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP Exam.

CP MARINE SCIENCE

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Biology.

Marine Science is a laboratory based course designed to provide the student with a practical overview of the physical, chemical, biological, and ecological aspects of the marine environment.

The course includes the following topics: plate tectonics and the origins of the oceans; chemical, physical, and geological aspects of the marine environment; ocean technologies and equipment; characteristics of the major marine ecosystems; characteristics of the major marine phyla; marine communities and fisheries management; and the impact of humans on the marine environment.

Laboratory exercises include: regular use of field sampling equipment and instrumentation for data collection and analysis of the marine environment; physiology and anatomy of marine organisms to relate form and function; and setup, maintenance and operation of marine aquaria.

The course includes monthly sampling of Hyannis Harbor, guest speakers, and possible field trips to scientific institutions on Cape Cod.

HONORS ANATOMY & PHYSIOLOGY

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Chemistry or concurrently enrolled, school recommendation.

A cooperative study of the human body, this course aims to develop an understanding of and appreciation for the relationship between structure and function in the human body, focusing on the structure and function of body systems. Laboratory investigations, including dissections, follow class discussions. Topics include cell organization, tissues, and a survey of the major human organ systems. Homeostatic mechanisms and application to clinical situations will be emphasized.

CP CHEMISTRY

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Biology.

CP Chemistry is an introductory course in the principles of chemistry. This course includes a qualitative and quantitative examination of the composition and subsequent reactions of matter. Topics include properties of matter, atomic structure, periodicity, nuclear chemistry, chemical bonding, chemical reactions, and stoichiometry. Class discussion is supplemented by laboratory investigations. Skills, techniques and concepts are taught which will prepare students to excel in a college-level science curriculum. A scientific calculator is required.

HONORS CHEMISTRY

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Biology and school recommendation.

Honors Chemistry is an advanced introductory course in the principles of chemistry. Topics of the course include properties of matter, atomic structure and nuclear chemistry, periodicity, chemical bonding, chemical reactions and stoichiometry, states of matter, solutions, acids and bases, and kinetics. Students will receive challenging textbook and laboratory assignments. Skills, techniques and concepts are taught which will prepare students to excel in a college-level science curriculum. Students are expected to be more self-disciplined and self-directed during laboratory exercises and independent assignments. Advanced critical thinking, reading, and writing skills are necessary for success in this course. A scientific calculator is required.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT CHEMISTRY

Year 1 Credit Grades: 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Honors Chemistry and Algebra II with grades of B+ or above in each; current math and science teacher recommendation; application process. Physics is not a prerequisite for AP Chemistry, but students are strongly encouraged to take Physics concurrently or the following year.

AP Chemistry is designed to be the equivalent of an introductory chemistry course usually taken during the first college year. It focuses on promoting enduring, conceptual understandings of Chemistry and the content that supports them, and will expose students to fundamental laboratory techniques used in college chemistry courses. Students will develop the reasoning, laboratory, and writing skills necessary to engage in science practices. Students will also develop skills such as designing plans for collecting data, analyzing data, applying mathematical models, connecting concepts in and across domains, and effectively communicating results. Topics include matter; atomic structure and quantum mechanics; bonding and intermolecular forces; chemical reactions, solutions, and stoichiometry; thermochemistry and thermodynamics; kinetics; general and solubility equilibrium; acid-base equilibrium; gasses and kinetic-molecular theory; oxidation and reduction reactions; electrochemistry.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP Exam.

CP ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Biology.

Environmental Science is a study of Earth's physical features, biomes, and how they interact with each other. The course initially looks at individual species and their characteristics then it progresses to how those species live and affect each other and interact with their unique environments. Human impact on the Earth's makeup is a theme that is addressed throughout the course. The course culminates with topics related to atmospheric and other cyclic conditions that affect life on Earth.

HONORS ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Biology.

Honors Environmental Science is a more advanced study of Earth's physical features, biomes, and how they interact with each other. The course initially looks at individual species and their characteristics then it progresses to how those species live and affect each other and interact with their unique environments. Human impact on the Earth's makeup is a theme that is addressed throughout the course. The course culminates with topics related to atmospheric and other cyclic conditions that affect life on Earth.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE

Year 1 Credit Grades: 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Biology, Chemistry and/or Physics; successful completion of Algebra I; current math and science teacher recommendation; application process.

The AP Environmental Science course is designed to engage students with the scientific principles, concepts, and methodologies required to understand the interrelationships within the natural world. The course requires that students identify and analyze natural and human-made environmental problems, evaluate the relative risks associated with these problems, and examine alternative solutions for resolving or preventing them. Environmental science is interdisciplinary, embracing topics from geology, biology, environmental studies, environmental science, chemistry, and geography.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT PHYSICS 1

Year 1 Credit Grade 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Honors Geometry; successful completion of or concurrent enrollment in Algebra II/Trigonometry; school recommendation, application process.

AP Physics is designed to be equivalent to the first semester of an introductory college-level algebra/trigonometry-based physics course. Students will spend upwards of 25% of instructional time completing laboratory activities, usually in groups of two or three. The majority of lab activities begin with open-ended questions that guide students to develop their own approach to addressing the problem at hand. Next to lab investigations, peer-group problem solving will occupy a significant amount of in-class time, allowing the students to work collaboratively to reach a solution. The goal is to have each student develop the problem-solving skills necessary in this branch of science. Topics include kinematics; Newton's Laws of Motion/dynamics; work; energy; power; linear momentum; angular motion; gravitation; simple harmonic motion; waves; sound; electrostatics; and simple circuits.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP Exam.

CP ENGINEERING: COMPUTATION, PROBLEM-SOLVING, AND DESIGN

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Chemistry; completion of or concurrent enrollment in Algebra II. Students may take this course concurrently with chemistry with departmental approval.

The College Preparatory level course is designed to build fundamental skills in applied sciences and engineering technology with focuses on replication and skill development. This course introduces engineering problem-solving, design, and computation and exposes students to the design process, research and analysis, teamwork, and technical communication. The first semester introduces basic programming (C++), 3-D printing, and electronic components with physics concepts introduced as appropriate. The second semester explores various engineering topics, such as structural analysis, architecture, spatial analysis, urban planning, water treatment, and sustainable energy. This course emphasizes effective scientific communication and the ethical relationships between technology and society, the role of values in engineering practice, and professional standards.

HONORS ENGINEERING: COMPUTATION, PROBLEM-SOLVING, AND DESIGN

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Honors Chemistry; completion or concurrent enrollment in Honors Algebra II. Students may take this course concurrently with chemistry with departmental approval.

This course introduces engineering problem-solving, design, and computation and exposes students to the design process, research and analysis, teamwork, and technical communication. The honors level course is an advanced course with emphasis on depth of thinking and originality of solutions. The first semester introduces basic programming (C++), 3-D printing, and electronic components with physics concepts introduced as appropriate. Students will integrate tools and skills in designing an engineering solution to be presented at the Science and Engineering Fair in February. The second semester explores various engineering topics, such as structural analysis, architecture, spatial analysis, urban planning, water treatment, and sustainable energy. This course emphasizes effective scientific communication and the ethical relationships between technology and society, the role of values in engineering practice, and professional standards.

HONORS SCIENCE FAIR PRACTICUM

Semester ½ Credit Grades 11, 12

In this science practicum, students will propose and design an experiment, conduct the experiment, analyze data, write research proposals, papers, and presentations, and gain valuable experience in independent STEM research under the guidance of knowledgeable faculty. It is expected that students will utilize best science and engineering practices, learn how to independently design and troubleshoot science or engineering designs and experiments, and gain experience presenting their research in a variety of settings at the local, regional, and state level.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course must participate in the school science fair and, if their projects are selected, in the regional and state science fairs.

Social Studies Program

A three-year/three (3) credit program in Social Studies (1 year of World History and 2 years of United States History) is required for graduation.

CP WORLD HISTORY

Year 1 Credit Grade 9

This course is designed to provide students with an understanding of the formation of the modern world over the past 600 years. The course begins with a foundational instruction of geography and its relationship to studying history. It then traces the development of societies in Asia, Africa, Europe, and the Americas beginning around the year 1450 CE. Students will be taught historical thinking skills, such as interpreting primary sources, analyzing arguments, and writing essays based on historical evidence.

PRE-AP WORLD HISTORY AND GEOGRAPHY

Year 1 Credit Grade 9

Pre-AP World History and Geography focuses on concepts and skills that will prepare students for a wide range of AP and non-AP history and social science courses. The course uses primary and secondary sources extensively, and uses the skills of a historian and geographer to help students learn to evaluate evidence, explain historical and geographical relationships, and incorporate evidence into written and oral arguments.

CP UNITED STATES HISTORY I

Year 1 Credit Grade 10

This course surveys the beginnings and growth of the United States as reflected in key political, social, economic, and cultural events from pre-Columbian societies to the Civil War. The course will focus on the founding of the American colonies, independence of the United States, development of the early U.S. government, and westward expansion. The course will also study the formation and development of United States government and politics, including contemporary American civics. Students will be taught historical thinking skills, such as interpreting primary sources, analyzing arguments, and writing essays based on historical evidence.

HONORS UNITED STATES HISTORY I

Year 1 Credit Grade 10

Req: School recommendation.

This course surveys the beginnings and growth of the United States as reflected in key political, social, economic, and cultural events from pre-Columbian societies to the Civil War. The course will focus on the founding of the American colonies, independence of the United States, development of the early U.S. government, and westward expansion. The course will also study the formation and development of United States government and politics, including contemporary American civics. Students will be taught historical thinking skills, such as interpreting primary sources, analyzing arguments, and writing essays based on historical evidence. While similar in content to College Prep US History, topics will be covered in greater depth and with special emphasis on critical reasoning skills.

CP UNITED STATES HISTORY II

Year 1 Credit Grade 11

This course is a continuation of CP United States History I. This course surveys the growth and development of the United States as reflected in key political, social, economic, and cultural events starting with the Civil War and continuing to the present. Topics include: the Civil War, Reconstruction, causes and consequences of the Industrial Revolution, Progressive Movement, the New Deal, WWII, the Cold War, the Civil Rights Movement, the Vietnam War era, and recent American history. Students will be taught historical thinking skills, such as interpreting primary sources, analyzing arguments, and writing essays based on historical evidence.

HONORS UNITED STATES HISTORY II

Year 1 Credit Grade 11

Req: School recommendation.

This course is a continuation of United States History I. This course surveys the growth and development of the United States as reflected in key political, social, economic, and cultural events starting with the Civil War and continuing to the present. Topics include: the Civil War, Reconstruction, causes and consequences of the Industrial Revolution, Progressive Movement, the New Deal, WWII, the Cold War, the Civil Rights Movement, the Vietnam War era, and recent American history. Students will be taught historical thinking skills, such as interpreting primary sources, analyzing arguments, and writing essays based on historical evidence. While similar in content to College Prep US History, topics will be covered in greater depth and with special emphasis on critical reasoning skills.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT UNITED STATES HISTORY II

Year 1 Credit Grade 11

Reg: School recommendation, application process.

This course is a continuation of Honors United States History I. This course is for students with superior verbal ability and a strong interest in history. It requires high motivation and an ability to write cogently, coherently, and analytically. Students must also be able to acquire knowledge from varied sources as necessary. The course requires extensive reading assignments and numerous papers and essays. The course surveys the key political, social, economic, and cultural events from the Civil War to the present. The areas of concentration include: The development of the Constitution, the Jacksonian Era, the Civil War, the Reconstruction, the Populist & Progressive Movements, WWI, the Twenties, the Great Depression, the New Deal, WWII, the Cold War and its aftermath, and recent American history.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP exam.

CP ECONOMICS

Semester ½ Credit Grades 11, 12

Economics is a semester-long course that will give students a broad understanding of economics, ranging from the study of individual consumers and business owners (microeconomics) to the national economy (macroeconomics). The course will focus on the law of supply and demand, money and prices, types of businesses, labor unions, the business cycle, and the government's influence on the economy. Other topics for discussion will include stock markets, comparative economic systems, and the impact of political and social decisions on the economy. Students will also learn basic basic personal finance information.

HONORS ECONOMICS

Semester ½ Credit Grades 11, 12

Economics is a semester-long course that will give students a broad understanding of economics, ranging from the study of individual consumers and business owners (microeconomics) to the national economy (macroeconomics). The course will focus on the law of supply and demand, money and prices, types of businesses, labor unions, the business cycle, and the government's influence on the economy. Other topics for discussion will include stock markets, comparative economic systems, and the impact of political and social decisions on the economy. Students will also learn basic basic personal finance information. The Honors level course will have a more intensive study than the College Prep level.

CP PSYCHOLOGY

Semester ½ Credit Grades 11, 12

Psychology is the study of individual human behavior and this course will be a survey of the theories, experiments and categories associated with that study. Students will gain a deeper understanding of human development and be expected to keep with the readings and projects assigned. Throughout the course various psychological concepts and theories will be studied. Some of these include: learning, intelligence, child development, personality, abnormal behavior, treatment, and therapies.

HONORS PSYCHOLOGY

Semester ½ Credit Grades 11, 12

Reg: School recommendation.

Psychology is the study of individual human behavior and this course will be a survey of the theories, experiments and categories associated with that study. Students will gain a deeper understanding of human development and be expected to keep with the readings and projects assigned. Throughout the course various psychological concepts and theories will be studied. Some of these include: learning, intelligence, child development, personality, abnormal behavior, treatment, and therapies. The Honors level course will have a more intensive level of study than the College Prep level course.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT PSYCHOLOGY

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: School recommendation, application process.

The AP Psychology course introduces students to the systematic and scientific study of human behavior and mental processes. While considering the psychologists and studies that have shaped the field, students explore and apply psychological theories, key concepts, and phenomena associated with such topics as the biological bases of behavior, sensation and perception, learning and cognition, motivation, developmental psychology, testing and individual differences, treatments of psychological disorders, and social psychology. Throughout the course, students employ psychological research methods, including ethical considerations, as they use the scientific method, evaluate claims and evidence, and effectively communicate ideas.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP exam.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT RESEARCH

Year 1 Credit Grades 11, 12

Req: School recommendation, application process.

AP Research, the second course in the AP Capstone experience, allows students to deeply explore an academic topic, problem, issue, or idea of individual interest. Students design, plan, and implement a yearlong investigation to address a research question. Through this inquiry, they further the skills they acquired in the AP Seminar course by learning research methodology, employing ethical research practices, and accessing, analyzing, and synthesizing information. Students reflect on their skill development, document their processes, and curate the artifacts of their scholarly work through a process and reflection portfolio. The course culminates in an academic paper of 4,000-5,000 words (accompanied by a performance, exhibit, or product where applicable) and a presentation with an oral defense.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP exam.

Theology Program

Four (4) credits are required for graduation. The Theology program is at the heart of the mission of a Catholic school. Theology courses are required for each of the eight semesters - one course per semester (two per year), five days a week. All Theology courses are consistent with the United States Conference of Catholic Bishops' *Curriculum Frameworks for Catholic High Schools*.

SCRIPTURE: THE REVELATION OF JESUS CHRIST IN SCRIPTURE

Semester ½ Credit Grade 9

The purpose of this course is to give students a general knowledge and appreciation of the Sacred Scriptures. Through their study of the Bible they will come to encounter the living Word of God, Jesus Christ. In the course they will learn about the Bible, authored by God through Inspiration, and its value to people throughout the world. If they have not been taught this earlier they will learn how to read the Bible and will become familiar with the major sections of the Bible and the books included in each section. The students will pay particular attention to the Gospels, where they may grow to know and love Jesus Christ more personally.

CHRISTOLOGY: WHO IS JESUS CHRIST?

Semester ½ Credit Grade 9

The purpose of this course is to introduce students to the mission and ministry of Jesus Christ, the living Word of God, the Second Person of the Blessed Trinity. Through study of the Paschal Mystery, students will understand that Jesus Christ is the ultimate Revelation to us from God. In learning about who he is, the students will also learn who he calls them to be.

CHURCH HISTORY

Semester ½ Credit Grade 10

This course is a survey of the history of the Roman Catholic Church from its beginning to the present day. The history of the Church is one of a pilgrim people united, as the Mystical Body of Christ that has developed over the ages. The purpose of this course is to supply the students with a general knowledge of the Church's history from apostolic times to the present. They will be introduced to the fact that the Church was founded by Christ through the Apostles and is sustained by him throughout history through the Holy Spirit. They will explore major events and movements that have been part of the Church's development and be introduced to the major players in the history of the institution.

THE CHURCH: JESUS CHRIST'S MISSION CONTINUES

Semester ½ Credit Grade 10

The purpose of this course is to help the students understand that in and through the Church they encounter the living Jesus Christ. They will be introduced to the fact that the Church was founded by Christ through the Apostles and is sustained by him through the Holy Spirit. The students will come to know that the Church is the living Body of Christ today. This Body has both divine and human elements. In this course, students will learn not so much about events in the life of the Church but about the sacred nature of the Church.

SACRAMENTS: PRIVILEGED ENCOUNTERS WITH JESUS CHRIST

Semester ½ Credit Grade 11

The purpose of this course is to help students understand that they can encounter Christ today in a full and real way in and through the sacraments, and especially through the Eucharist. Students will examine each of the sacraments in detail so as to learn how they may encounter Christ throughout life.

CHRISTIAN MORALITY: LIFE IN JESUS CHRIST

Semester ½ Credit Grade 11

The purpose of this course is to help students understand that it is only through Christ that they can fully live out God's plans for their lives. Students are to learn the moral concepts and precepts that govern the lives of Christ's disciples.

SOCIAL JUSTICE: LIVING AS DISCIPLES OF JESUS CHRIST

Semester ½ Credit Grade 12

The purpose of this course is to introduce students to the Church's social teaching. In this course, students are to learn how Christ's concern for others, especially the poor and needy, is present today in the Church's social teaching and mission.

COMPARATIVE RELIGIONS

Semester ½ Credit Grade 12

Comparative Religions is a second-semester theology course for Grade 12 students. This course will build on the foundational truth that Jesus Christ established the Catholic Church and entrusted to her the fullness of God's Revelation. This course is intended to help students recognize the historical influence of the Catholic Church on non-Catholic Christian denominations and ecclesial communities and the contemporary relationship with them. This course will examine non-Christian religions as well. This is intended to help students recognize the ways in which other systems of belief and practice differ from or may be similar to the Catholic faith.

THE LETTERS OF SAINT PAUL

Semester ½ Credit Grade 12

The Letters of Saint Paul is a second-semester theology course for Grade 12 students. This course will introduce the major Letters of Saint Paul. The letters are the Church's earliest writings and so they offer a historical context for the early Church and some insight into the lives of first century Christian communities. Students will read the letters and discuss many of the important themes discussed in Saint Paul's work: salvation, Jesus' fulfillment of the Covenant, and the Church as the body of Christ, among others.

CATECHETICAL PRACTICUM

Semester ½ Credit Grade 12

Req: School recommendation.

An elective course for seniors who are practicing Catholics and well versed in Catholic Theology. Working under the direction of the Senior Theology teacher the students will act as Theology tutors to International students. These students will work with International students individually or in small groups and instruct them in the basics of Catholic Faith and practice with a goal of preparing the international students to move into the regular Theology program. Working with the Theology instructor, the students will plan and execute lessons and keep a record of the material covered; they will develop assignments and assessments to measure students' progress.

Additional Elective Courses

HONORS LEADERSHIP STUDIES & PRACTICUM

Year 1 Credit Grade 12

Reg: Application; Program Director approval.

This program will introduce leadership theory and develop leadership skills necessary for current and future leaders in society. The course is open to seniors who seek to develop and enhance leadership skills. The fall component of the class is classroom-based. Students will meet daily as a class to study communication, ethics and the philosophy of leadership. They will also have the opportunity to hear from a series of guest speakers who represent a wide spectrum of leadership roles in our community.

During the spring semester, students will demonstrate leadership development through the completion of a practicum within a professional context in the community. All practicum projects require program director approval. Students will meet periodically as a class during the spring semester to discuss progress, challenges and successes. Students will also meet individually with the program director to ensure progress. Completion of the practicum will include a written reflection and oral presentation on the assignment.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to complete an independent practicum assignment in the professional context of the community in the spring.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT COMPUTER SCIENCE PRINCIPLES

Year 1 Credit Grades 10, 11, 12

Req: Successful completion of Algebra I and either Algebra II or Geometry; school recommendation, application process. Preference will be given to students in grades 11 and 12.

This course introduces students to the foundation concepts of computer science and explores the impact computing and technology have on our society. With a unique focus on creative problem solving and real-world applications, the Computer Science Principles course gives students the opportunity to explore several important topics of computing using their own ideas and creativity, use the power of computing to create artifacts of personal value, and develop an interest in computer science that will foster further endeavors in the field.

Students will write and run code in the browser, create websites and digital artifacts, and engage in in-person collaborative exercises with classmates. Students will be able to write both text-based and block-based JavaScript programs, and students will use an online application editor to create graphical programs. Students gain programming experience early on in the course that will enable them to explore the rest of the course topics through computational thinking practices.

N.B.: All students enrolled in this course are required to take the Advanced Placement Examination. Students must pay the fee associated with the AP exam.

Christian Service Program

Successful completion of four (4) years of Christian Service is required for graduation. Through the Gospel mandate of Jesus Christ, we are called as Christians to take up our "basin and towel" to love and serve as Christ did.

"For I have given you an example, that you also should do as I have done to you." (John 13:15)

Through the Christian service program, all students of St. John Paul II School, High School Division are offered the gifts of *humility* and *poverty in spirit* in loving service to others through Jesus Christ. Students are required to perform four years of Christian Service at St. John Paul II School, High School Division.

Students receive specific Christian Service Program requirements for each year through Campus Ministry orientations and Theology classes.

- Students receive a Pass/Fail grade on their semester report cards and transcripts, which is based on the completion of the required service.
- Service is required for graduation. It will be recorded as a zero-credit course on the transcript.
- Students who fail to fulfill their service requirement will not be allowed to return to St. John Paul II High School without completing the requirement during the summer months.

Freshman Year

All freshmen are required to participate in two service experiences led by JPII faculty or staff members (minimum: one each semester). In addition to the actual service events, there will be preparation meetings and follow-up sessions. The student must be present for the preparation and follow up meetings as well as the actual service events to fulfill their service requirement. A list of upcoming service opportunities will be provided to the students in their Theology class and will be updated throughout the school year.

Sophomore Year

All sophomores are required to participate in four service experiences (minimum: two each semester). They may participate in the service opportunities led by JPII faculty or staff members or they may participate in service experiences of their choosing. Sophomores who do service outside of school are responsible for presenting the sophomore Theology teachers with appropriate documentation signed by an adult verifying the completion of service. Staff-led service opportunities are announced by the campus ministers and Theology teachers throughout the school year.

Junior Year

All juniors will participate in Community Service to the "marginalized". This will include eight visits to an agency or agencies serving the marginalized that have been approved by the service coordinator.

- Students must complete all eight visits at no more than two service sites.
- Students are encouraged to do the service with a partner.
- In choosing their sites, students are encouraged to think beyond the junior year and choose a site that might develop into the Senior Advocacy Project.

"Marginalized" is defined as a population of people who are generally forgotten members of society; a population of people who are generally seen as not contributing members and have little or no worth to society. The marginalized person is one whose needs are greater than the "average" member of society and whose needs are typically unmet. We look to Jesus as a model of service to the marginalized.

Senior Year

All seniors will participate in a social justice advocacy effort.

A major aspect of the Social Justice course is training students to speak on behalf of those who cannot speak for themselves. Therefore, seniors will participate in an advocacy project where students learn about and speak on behalf of the poor and vulnerable in our society. Students will work at a local agency that serves a marginalized population (They are encouraged to continue the relationship developed in their Junior service project). They will visit the site at least six times and interview clients and service providers, learning about this issue and its possible solutions.

The advocacy project will also require the participation of all seniors in a Social Justice Fair, where they will make other members of our community aware of the problem and organize or encourage others to become involved. Seniors will be encouraged to help younger students reflect on service.